5/22/09

Notes from the May 21, 2009 Open Faculty Forum
Discussing the Molecular Life Sciences Review Report

Charles Shapiro, vice chair of the IANR Haison committee, opened the forum, noting it was in
response to a faculty request for an opportunity to discuss the report submitted by the molecular
life sciences review team that visited the UNL campus in March at the request of Chancellor
Harvey Perlman. Shapiro asked those attending to keep the length of their remarks to around 3
minutes to facilitate opportunities for all who wished to speak to have the time to do so during
the 1 %2 hour forum, which was available by Polycom at the Panhandle, West Central, and
Northeast Research and Extension Centers.

Steve Baenziger, a member of the UNL response to the molecular life sciences report committee
appointed by Chancellor Perlman, said he was standing in for committee co-chairs Andy Benson,
who was on a flight back to Lincoln and arrived at the meeting asap after landing, and Jim Van
Etten, who had surgery Friday and also was present. Baenziger named the committee, which
includes these additional members: Tiffany Heng-Moss, Gary Pickard, Tom Clemente, Concetta
DiRusso, Terry Klopfenstein, Milford Hanna, Janos Zempleni, Nina Murray and Charles Wood.

Speakers said:

Don Lee:

— Said he was present to comment on the core curriculum recommendations of the
committee, as well as the process for the review team visit.

— Said he felt faculty were more spectators than participants in the process, and didn’t
have the opportunity to communicate how they teach life sciences, and the outcome of their
efforts, to the review team. Lee said at the open forum faculty could attend when the team
visited campus, he asked review team members if they felt they could do a thorough job
reviewing the life sciences curriculum in the time they were here, and review team members said
“no”.

— He said what the review team provided is a benefit in that it is a road map in moving
forward, and he supported the recommendation that Vice Chancellors John Owens and Barbara
Couture form a committee to work toward a common core curriculum. He said people for the
committee need to be carefully selected.

— The review team referenced the National Academy of Sciences report as helpful in this
endeavor, Lee said, and he referenced a second national report he said is focused on agriculture,
that was said to be a good starting point for curriculum review. He noted a document from
CASNR was mentioned and said he wasn’t clear what that was; he said he would like to hear
more about it, and would like to hear from the vice chancellors as to their plans in following up
on these curriculum recommendations.



Pat Shea

— Asked if comments/questions could be made on Don Lee’s comments; Charles Shapiro
suggested questions wait until everyone had the opportunity to say what they came to say.

— Said he had a number of comments; one aspect he thought especially important being
the review team’s comment on administrative reporting relationships. There was a mention of
perceived tension between campuses, alternate reporting might change that. He would like Vice
Chancellors Owens and Couture to respond to that. Is this a problem? How might it be
addressed?

Sally Mackenzie

— Said she has been at UNL 10 years; a report prepared by faculty in 2000 put forward
what the problem was, and spoke of the tension between city and east campus. She said in her
opinion, a lack of response to that report is the reason several good people left.

— Said more than a year ago Brian Larkins prepared a report on the molecular life sciences
at UNL and said changes are needed to serve students and research. She said she considered
Larkin’s work at the expense of his time, energy and political clout.

— In her opinion, she said, the review team said about the same thing, and her opinion is
that if upper administration doesn’t respond appropriately, with meaningful, tangible change, it
will be back to square one. She said she wants to hear about tangible change here. She said she
works to keep researchers happy, and she thinks they are doing their part. Said Prem Paul is
pleased they reached the $100 million research dollars mark early this year.

— Said in her opinion, addressing leadership is much of what lies in the report.

Charles Shapiro noted Pat Shea asked about the CASNR report, and asked if anyone could
comment on that?

Don Lee:
— Said he made a table of the work the CASNR curriculum committee involved in the life

sciences has done since 2006.

— Noted CASNR can’t do it alone, it has to be a combined effort throughout UNL. Have
to get together and share ideas. Said he doesn’t think have done a good job on that.

— Agreed with Sally Mackenzie that there wasn’t a response to the first report. Said it
takes a combination of leadership to get going, and then administration needs to walk away and
trust the faculty to take leadership. Faculty have to get involved in the curriculum — he said he
didn’t have the expertise to talk about the research aspects.

-- People have to trust each other, and work together, he said.

John Owens:
— Said that in regard to the process of beginning to develop the core curriculum for the

life sciences, he and Vice Chancellor Barbara Couture are meeting next week with Deans
Manderscheid and Waller, and think good things will come of it. He said he agreed with a
previous comment that responsibility for the curriculum is the purview of the faculty.



— He said he and Dr. Couture have no tensions in working together, and work often and
well together.

Barbara Couture:

— Wanted to reiterate what John Owens said; they meet every two weeks, talk about
issues requiring coordination between IANR and Academic Affairs.

— Said when she arrived she did receive the 2000 faculty-prepared life sciences report. At
the time UNL was fighting some issues, including low enrollment, a 10-year accreditation visit,
the need to revitalize the universitywide general education program. She noted that over a2 %
year period, with much faculty interaction and input, UNL has come up with a general education
program curriculum that is now touted nationally as an example. In doing so, she said, they
created a transparent process that required lots of cooperation and leadership across many levels.

- Said she and Vice Chancellor Owens will follow similar actions, as appropriate; will
talk with faculty and work to gain maximum faculty involvement, to do something all can feel
good about, and are ready, willing and wanting to get this done.

Harvey Perlman:

~ Said he felt compelled to say a lot of things, first being, he started this venture because
TANR and the rest of the molecular life sciences on campus have opportunities to be significant
for state, but need to do some things to do that.

— He said he rejected the 2000 report in its entirety because it called for an end of JANR,
and he won’t support that,

-- He said if UNL is going to serve agriculture in the future, it needs the resources of both
campuses. He added this is not a threat to IANR, but an opportunity.

— Within the baseline he provided, question is how to create an environment to maximize
opportunity in agriculture and outside it, he said.

— His opinion, he said, is that if Nebraska can’t be regarded as the leading university in
agriculture research, not only applied but higher science, no one should. You need computer
science, geoscience, chemistry to achieve this, he said.

— This report has some ideas, he said; don’t know if these are the right ideas, it’s up to the
faculty to come up with ideas. This is the feedback needed in response to the report.

— He said the recommendations as he reads them are:

1) Need core curriculum for life sciences across the university. Facuity control
curricutum, so can make that happen. Means changes in teaching environment,
more a mix of teaching.

2) Can’t afford to duplicate core facilities equipment; need collaborative efforts to
be at the cutting edge of instrumentation.

3) Faculty evaluation standards need to be consistent; need to engage to see what
systems are helpful to share.

4) The review team suggested potential areas of excellence, and faculty input is
needed there — are these the right ones? Are there others? While most they listed
resonate with him, Perlman said if there are others, this is the time to name them.
5) Recommended an undergraduate program in microbiology; if faculty don’t



think that’s important, need to let administrators know why not.
6) Three different structures at three other institutions set frameworks under
which ag molecular life sciences and other molecular life sciences can be brought
together; visits already have been made to two of them.
— Said the larger issue that arises is fashioning a vision for how the university positions
itself to serve Nebraska’s primary industry for the next 20 years. Asked what is needed
a) to be seen as being as supportive of the industry as possible? and
b) to gain national recognition for doing so.
— Said this doesn’t detract from the engagement and applied research IANR is good at.
Hopes for vigorous discussion, but must be quick because there is the possibility of great
opportunities if the right ambition and commitments are shown.

Mike Carlson:

— Came to talk about core curriculum; said he advises undergraduates, on the CASNR
curriculum committee, and he would say there are three groups of students, using chemistry as an
example:

*chemistry for non-science majors, [this for those students who have to take a
science class and may take only one];

*algebra-based chemistry, [a more rigorous approach, more quantitative for
students who go to a professional school];

*calculus-chemistry, [mathematically sophisticated for those going to graduate
school, expecting to be a practicing chemist].

— Said must serve the customer, our students, and ask if they will buy our curriculum —
they have other places to go. What are their needs, and do we meet them? Lots of groups can
say “You should be teaching this or that,” but the university can’t predict what students will do;
he said he is an example of that — didn’t plan to end up in science career.

— Said he is afraid if the curriculum is too restrictive, it might be seen as technical
instruction students need to be an honor student or going on to graduate school to participate in.
He said must remember there are students you can’t convince to take calculus; if those students
are ignored, his fear is that will see numbers of students decrease.

Paul Black:

— Said he has been here less than a year, sees things with different eyes. His opinion is
that within IANR there are tensions on tenure/promotion, and that spills over to city campus. He
said he would like it to be thought of/seen as one campus. He said this is the first campus he has
seen where there is this disparity in tenure/promotion requirements. He said this discordance
between the two halves of campus can be solved quickly, and he encouraged Vice Chancellors
Owens and Couture to do so.

~ Said it is exciting to see the programs here that do cross boundaries. While there are
issues, it can be done — in biochemistry have 170 Arts and Sciences students and 150 CASNR
students. Requires an open mind and dialogue, he said.

— Said he would like to see a Bioinfomatics and Computational Biology Initiative that
would bring the two campuses together.



— Noted what is happening at NIH, importance of interdisciplinary work. Said there are
resources that are phenomenal and disparate. How to take all forward is a tough call. Said he is
a true supporter of a common life sciences curriculum; there is a need for a large motivating
factor.

— Said the challenge isn’t that there is a two-tier system; students have to be educated so
they can learn independently.

Andy Benson:
— Said if you have students who can text, you have students who can understand DNA.

He said he sees too many senior level students who can’t articulate the central dogma of how
macromolecules work. They need to understand the underpinnings of science.

— Said looking down from the plane yesterday could see how technology has been put
into practice in agriculture. Now there are machines on campus, and coming, from which
agriculture stands to gain the most from the -omics revolution.

— Said the wall now is bioinfomatics; when get over that wall will link all together as ag
researchers have access to the genomes of the organizations they’re working with; that hasn’t
been available before.

— Said there is a need to push for a vision to position selves to capture information and
translate it, and that should translate to and drive things to do here. How do we take this and turn
it into what we want, he asked.

— He thanked the chancellor for taking responsibility for what happened to the 2000
report.

— Said in his opinion, every unit should have a discussion on and process for capturing all
tools and information coming from -omics of systems biology. If there are resources at the end
of the pipeline, they should be applied to the processes/plans units develop through their
discussions.

Paul Black:
— Said the trip by those who went to Bio5 at the University of Arizona learned of a model

that brings together expertise to promote excellence in research in a building that doesn’t house
any specific department. Brings together expertise in plants and animals, and promotes
imminently fundable research. Provides the underpinnings to support the research, promotes
interdisciplinary research that to build partnerships people must go outside their own discipline.
It’s positioned on campus to bring people together in a common facility, and promotes cross talk.

Gary Cunningham:

~ Contrast that with the molecular biology facility visited at the University of Missouri.

— Bio5 is successful because teams were teams before the facility was there; they moved
into the facility so they could work better, but they had their working relationships established
prior.

— Said it’s the opposite at the University of Missouri facility, where the building was
there, and the legislature provided funds for new hires that are partly paid through the department
and partly through the facility. There one person at the facility tries to make the connections



between people new 1o the facility. Said it leads to large programs at Bio5; small programs at
University of Missouri facility.

— Said looking forward to going to Ohio State to see their model, where there is no
facility devoted to this; will provide lots of models to look at and may come up with something
that works even better here, because looking for what works best on this campus, not other
campuses.

Jim Van Etten:

— While he is co-chair of the response committee named by the chancellor, he said this
afternoon was speaking as an individual. He said he has been here 43 years, and one thing that
always has bothered him is that in his opinion, departments and the Institute often act
independently of the good of UNL.

~ Said biology is being done across two colleges, and soon will also be across the College
of Engineering because of new hires there. Said in his opinion need a guru of biology who will
cross all three colleges; said his opinion has been that there should be an institute of life sciences
and agriculture, but Chancellor Perlman has said that won’t work peliticalty.

—Said in his opinion the “guru” person should be involved in setting up interviews so
those who interview for a position at UNL meet with those who do similar work whether or not
they are in that person’s department. He said his opinion is that departments and colleges are
hung up on what’s good for the department, not necessarily the university, and the “gury”
working across colleges would mitigate that. Said it would be a tough decision of the chancellor
and vice chancellors to put someone in authority to cross these.

Barbara Couture:

—Said people in the forum are identifying real issues to address; and while some are
providing solutions they see, those may not be the final solutions. Said sometimes people think
just adding a person will be the magic answer, but it isn’t.

— Said in her opinion, have been some remarkable hires in connection with the Water
Initiative because there is a process to work across Academic Affairs and TANR.

— She said she asks the Academic Affairs deans to run down what they’re going to ask in
hires by August, and can share that with Vice Chancellor Owens at the beginning of each
academic year so they can look for synergies in possible hires. She said this works successfully
in the programs of excellence, where the positions looking for are known, and involve faculty
from both sides of the house. She said this can happen, they can be diligent in seeing it is done,
and she and Vice Chancellor Owens are ready, willing and wanting to get this done.

Concetta DiRusso:

— Said she is fairly new to campus; her appointment is 51 percent in nutrition, and 49
percent in biochemistry; she has offices at Beadle and on East Campus, and spends time each
week in each. Said her appointment works, you just have to go out and make the connections
you need.

— Said she encourages everyone to look at all the good things going on. She said since
coming to campus she has been most impressed by the students, and she agrees with Mike



Carlson their path in core curriculum does depend on the level they need to know.
— Urged maintaining what is strong and valuable when any changes are made.

Steve Baenziger said as a response committee member he found what people had to say helpful
and useful, and hoped others found the forum so, as well. He thanked Chancellor Perlman and
Vice Chancellors Owens and Couture for their participation, and reiterated that the response team
meets Friday p.m. May 22, and the following Thursday, May 28, will meet to report to the
chancellor.



